
1 

 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, August 11, 2025 
6:00 p.m. - Hybrid Meeting 

 
Topic: Ludlow Development Review Board - Hybrid 
Log-In Online 11 August 2025 at 17:45 Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting: Ludlow Development Review Board Zoom Link – August 11, 2025 
Meeting ID: 960 3551 7223 
Passcode: 153190 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 

George Tucker, Jr. - Chair Phil Carter (ZOOM) Doug Sheehan   

John Boehrer (ZOOM) Julie Nicoll  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  

  Jarrod Jowdy 
 

Lisha Klaiber  

OTHERS PRESENT:  
 
Eric Alden – All Suzanne Garvey – SFV Kristie Rosati – Garone 
Scott Baitz - All Alicia Kidd – Garone Thomas Rosati – Garone 
Andrew Becker - SFV Ken Kidd - Garone Randall Walter - SFV 
 Rick Cross - Garone   
 
I. CALL TO ORDER - Roll Call 
 

1.    George Tucker, Chair, opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m., all members present:  Phil Carter and 
John Boehrer via ZOOM. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 

1.    No changes were needed 
 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR GARONE FAMILY VERMONT HOLDINGS 
 

1. George Tucker advised that this is an application to subdivide one 39.1-acre lot into two lots of 
22.45 and16.65 acres. This project is located at 164 Barker Road in the Town Residential District.  



DRB Preliminary Minutes        August 11, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________  
 

2 
 

2. Jarrod Jowdy advised that this is Application Number SUB25-004.  He said it was posted in the 
Town Hall bulletin Boards on July 18, 2025 and the Post Office Bulletin board and on the website 
on July 23, 2025, advertised in THE VERMONT JOURNAL on July 23, 2025 and abutting 
property owners were notified on July 18, 2025. Letters have been received from Police, 
Ambulance and Fire departments.    He said that the applicant submitted pages 1 – 13 to the 
Planning and Zoning office which were provided to board members for review. 

3. George Tucker administered the oath to Rick Cross and Thomas Rosati 
4. Rick Cross said that the applicants want to subdivide a 39.1-acre parcel into 2 parcels: Parcel #1 

will be 22.5 acres and Parcel 32 will be 16.65 acres. 
5. George Tucker, Jr. asked how far the existing house on Lot #1 is from the second lot. 
6. Rick Cross said that David Rose said that at the closet point is 41 feet and the setback 

requirement is 15 feet. 
7. George Tucker, Jr. asked where the well for the house is located 
8. Rick Cross showed its location on the drawing. 
9. George Tucker, Jr. asked about easements 
10. Rick Cross said there were none 
11. George Tucker, Jr. asked about the 2 existing utility easements. 
12. Rick Cross said they are existing Green Mountain Power easements 
13. Jarrod Jowdy asked about the septic. 
14. Rick Cross indicated its location on the drawing.  He added that it is completely on Lot #1 
15. Julie Nicoll said that the DRB wants well shields to be located completely on the property and not 

to encumber another owners’ property. 
16. Phil Carter said that the 39.1 acres property will be subdivided into 2 lots:  a 16.65-acre parcel 

will be created out of the 39.1-acre parcel.  He asked about access to the new parcel. 
17. Rick Cross said there are 2 options and they are going through the process to determine which 

one.  They will submit the access plan when they apply for a construction permit.  Currently, they 
are using the existing driveway for access. 

18. Phil Carter said if this application is approved, the DRB will need the drawings to show the 
access and setbacks. 

19. Julie Nicoll said that the well shields should also be shown on the drawings and not encumber 
any other property. 

20. Thomas Rosati said that his property is at the southernmost part of the property and was told by 
the realtor when they purchased that there are 2 50 ROWs that are access to his property. 

21. Rick Cross said they are not shown on the drawings from David Rose. 
22. Thomas Rosati said he has 2 separate parcels 
23. George Tucker, Jr. administered the oath to Kristie Rosati 
24. Kristie Rosati said the parcel where they live does not abut the property in this hearing, but their 2 

other lots do. If the board takes away their ROW, they will not have access to those 2 lots. 
25. Phil Carter said if there is a deeded ROW this is a moot point.  The DRB sees the deeds, the 

ROW goes with the land. 
26. George Tucker, Jr. asked Rick Cross to find the deed that shows the ROWs. 
27. Phil Carter said if the ROWs are not in the deed, it doesn’t exist. 
28. George Tucker, Jr. said the following items are still needed:  location of existing well shield, 

location of existing septic and ROW easement for Rosati property.   



DRB Preliminary Minutes        August 11, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________  
 

3 
 

29. Julie Nicoll said that the well shield may not encumber another property. 
30. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Julie Nicoll to close this hearing.  Motion 

passed unanimously 
 
 
IV. OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR SOUTH FACE VILLAGE AT OKEMO 
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC. 
 

1. George Tucker, Jr. advised that this is an application to relocate the building location for a future 
Residential Duplex (Mountain Chalet # D14) to across the road from its previously approved 
location.  This property is located on the Mountain Recreation District. 

2. Jarrod Jowdy said this is Application 334-11-CU Amendment #6, 334-11-PUD, Amendment #6 
and 334-11-ACT250 Amendment #6.  Property owner South Face Village at Okemo. LLC.  The 
property is located Aurora Ridge Lane is located in the Mountain Recreation District.  He said it 
was posted in the Town Hall bulletin Boards on July 23, 2025 and the Post Office Bulletin board 
and on the website on July 23, 2025, advertised in THE VERMONT JOURNAL on July 23, 2025 
and abutting property owners were notified on July 21, 2025. Letters have been received from 
Police, Ambulance and Fire departments.   

3. George Tucker, Jr. advised that the applicant has submitted pages 1 – 279 to the Planning and 
Zoning Office which forwarded copies to DRB members for their review.  He said that there are 
pages listed as blank to correlate with the second application for this property. 

4. George Tucker, Jr. administered the oath to Andrew Becker, Randall Walter 
5. Andy Becker advised that they wish to move the Mountain Chalet D-14 to the other side of 

Aurora Road.  He said that when they designed the original location of D-12, it was too close to 
the lift and the State of Department of Labor, State Passenger Tramway Division (regulates ski lifts) 
said it had to be moved.  So, they moved D-12 and then had to move D-13 and now D-14.  They are 
requesting approval to move D-14 directly across the street from its original location.  It will be 
exactly the same as the other units and what it was supposed to have been in the original permit. It will 
look the same.  If this is approved, we will clear the site and start construction in the fall.  All items – 
water, sewer, power will be the same.  He said they has originally thought that Rose Goings would be 
able to make an Administrative decision, but that didn’t happen.  He said that the State ACT 250 did 
approve the change.  All of the ability to serve letters have been submitted, there are no nearby 
abutters and to hid knowledge, no objections. 

6. John Boehrer asked who required the move of the units. 
7. Andy Becker said State of Department of Labor, State Passenger Tramway Division 
8. Julie Nicoll asked about density 
9. Andy Becker said there will be no changes in density 
10. George Tucker, Jr. asked about current “green space.” 
11. Andy Becker said they will plant trees on the previous site location and there are no plans to put 

anything else there. 
12. George Tucker, Jr. asked Mr. Becker if they had seen the letters of service and any conditions, they 

may have 
13. Andy Becker said yes 
14. George Tucker, Jr. read through the questions and answers for the Local ACT 250 (page 22.) 



DRB Preliminary Minutes        August 11, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________  
 

4 
 

15. George Tucker, Jr. asked about exterior lighting 
16. Andy Becker said it will be the same 
17. George Tucker, Jr. administered the oath to Eric Alden 
18. Eric Alden said he has 2 concerns: 

a. He has noticed that as they add buildings, his water well runs dry after about 20 minutes and 
he is concerned this is due to the addition of the buildings 

b. He said that prior to the addition of buildings, he had many bears and for the last 5 years, he 
hasn’t seen any 

19. Andy Becker said that the have 3 deep wells at the top of the project and since 2014 have note added 
any new wells.  They have a 200,000 concrete water tank and the wells only go on occasionally.  They 
are not building new wells. 

20. Randall Walter said that there is a bear habitat zone at the top of the project and they are seen at the 
dumpsters.  He said that the wells have not been modified in any way 

21. Jarrod Jowdy said that recently, VLCT advised towns to collect fees for hearings in advance of the 
project.  They also need to clear any past debts to the town. 

22. Andy Becker said he has spoken to Brendan McNamara and there are 2 outstanding invoices.  If 
approved they will pay.  If not approved, they will not pay. 

23. MOTION by Julie Nicoll and seconded by Doug Sheehan to close this hearing.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 

 
V. OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR SOUTH FACE VILLAGE AT OKEMO 
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC. 
 

1. George Tucker, Jr. advised that this is an application is to request changing the previously 
approved permit for Building C-6 (with 14 units) to 3 Mountain Chalet structures of 2 units each.  
This property is located on the Mountain Recreation District.  

2.  Jarrod Jowdy said this is Application 334-11-CU Amendment #7, 334-11-PUD, Amendment #7 
and 334-11-ACT250 Amendment #7.  Property owner South Face Village at Okemo. LLC.  The 
property is located Aurora Ridge Lane is located in the Mountain Recreation District.  He said it 
was posted in the Town Hall bulletin Boards on July 23, 2025 and the Post Office Bulletin board 
and on the website on July 23, 2025, advertised in THE VERMONT JOURNAL on July 23, 2025 
and abutting property owners were notified on July 21, 2025. Letters have been received from 
Police, Ambulance and Fire departments.   

3. George Tucker, Jr. advised that the applicant has submitted pages 1 – 279 to the Planning and 
Zoning Office which forwarded copies to DRB members for their review.  He said that there are 
pages listed as blank to correlate with the second application for this property. 

4. George Tucker, Jr. administered the oath to Andrew Becker, Randall Walter and Eric Alden. 
5. Andy Becker said that there are 3 types of buildings in South Face. He said they are requesting a 

permit to replace Building C-6 (with 14 units) to 3 Mountain Chalet duplex structures of 2 units 
each.  This change will be less than the original permit.  He said that the original Building #6 was 
about 11,000 square feet and the 3 duplexes will be about 9,000 square feet.  There will be less 
traffic and less water/sewer usage.  It will have less of a visual impact. 



DRB Preliminary Minutes        August 11, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________  
 

5 
 

6. Randall Walter indicated on the drawing the proposed location.  He said there will be more 
facilities for the owners.  There will be room to set up exercise equipment and each unit will have 
a hot tub.  He has not heard of any objections. 

7. Phil Carter asked Andy Becker if they are familiar with Stowe Highland decision.  He said that 
Ludlow has adopted this. He said that this project has had numerous amendments and asked if 
they will be done after these amendments. 

8. Andy Becker said no, this project started design in 2005 – 2010. It was for a total of 208 units and 
we will not ask for more.  There may be changes that we will make.  WE have spoken to Larry 
Slason about a larger set of changes in 2026. 

9. Phil Carter asked what happens when they are rejected.  He said that the owners at Stowe started 
to object to the changes being made at that project. 

10. Andy Becker said we are asking to change a 180 feet long building in 3 smaller buildings that 
will eliminate any view that is currently obstructed by larger buildings. 

11. Phil Carter said that the town enacted Stowe Highlands.  He suggested that Andy Becker have a 
conversation with Larry Slason.  He said this project does have to be done at some point. 

12. Randall Walter said currently all of the work we do is above what this was and there will be less 
traffic.  Before we look at a larger project at Center Village, this is the last we will do in this area.  
In 2027 the original project permit expires and we will have to come back in 2026 to re-up that 
permit.  He said that Larry Slason is quite positive about future changes 

13. Andy Becker said if we are approved, we will go to ACT 250 for this one and this project will 
start in the spring. 

14. Jarrod Jowdy asked if there are any other condos about this layer. 
15. Andy Becker said yes, there are all duplexes, no more larger town houses or big buildings. 
16. George Tucker, Jr. asked Andy Becker if they are familiar with the conditions on the service 

letters 
17. Andy Becker said yes. 
18. George Tucker, Jr. asked about vegetation plans on page 24.  He said the area is currently flat 

blasted rock 
19. Randall Walter said the plans are in development.  They plan to plant pockets of trees and will 

continue to plant where possible.  He said the only open areas will be the ski slopes. 
20. Julie Nicoll asked about lighting 
21. Randall Walter said all dark sky initiative, 100% downlit and all shine towards the project 
22. George Tucker, Jr. asked about page 19 ACT250.  He read through all questions and answers.  He 

asked if they are aware of any conditions from town service letters.  He indicated that by their 
testimony, they have said that there will be less traffic. 

23. Randall Walter asked if all board members had a chance to visit the site and see the orange 
marks. 

24. Andy Becker said there will be landscaping and green space.  
25. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Doug Sheehan to close this hearing.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

VI. MINUTES- June 9, 2025 
 

1. Corrections on page 2, item III, 4- should read “We also moved the new canopy...” 



DRB Preliminary Minutes        August 11, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________  
 

6 
 

2. Corrections on page 4 item III, 41 – refers back to #38 when Phil Carter asked about people 
pulling out with trucker and trailer.  In #40, Phil Carter asked who will help and in #41, Tom 
Frawley said that the employees will help. 

3. Correction on page 4, III, 47 - Misspelling of eclectic should read electric. 
4. Correction on page 4, III, 52 - Should read “George Tucker, Jr. asked about costs of maintenance 

expenses. 
5. MOTION by Julie Nicoll and seconded by Doug Sheehan to accept the minutes from June 

9, 2025 as corrected.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
VII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 Review bi-weekly letters from the Mill as a condition of their MOU 

 
1. George Tucker, Jr. said the last time the representatives from the Mill were here, they discussed 

outstanding issues.  He asked if they have any idea when this will be complete 
2. Eric Alden said that have made a lot of progress and are close to being finished. He said they 

meet once or twice a week. 
 

 
VIII. ADJOURN 
 

1. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Doug Sheehan to adjourn. Motion passed 
unanimously.   

2. Meeting adjourned at 7:08 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
 
Lisha Klaiber 
 
 

____________________________________ 
George Tucker, Jr., Chairman 

____________________________________ 
Julie Nicoll 

 
 
____________________________________ 
John Boehrer  

 
 
____________________________________ 
Doug Sheehan 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Phil Carter 

 

 


